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Pingyao, a town with a long
history, is located in the central
part of Shanxi Province,close to the
southern end of the Taiyuan Basin.
According to the historical records,
this ancient town was originally
built in the period of Xuan Em-—
peror of Zhou Dynasty (827 B.C.—
—782 B.C.). It was built with
the northern and western walls only
as a garrison town by a Zhou Dy-—
nasty general named Yin Jifu. In
the early period of Northern Wei
Dynasty,four rammed earth walls
were built and the town was named
Ping Tao.In the year 424, the first
year of Shi Guang Period of North—
ern Wei Dynasty, to avoid the sound
“Tao”, which was part of the
Emperor'sname “Tuoba Tao of North—
ern Wei Dynasty, Ping Tao was

Pingyao Ancient Town

renamed as Pingyao. From this we
can see the town has had a history
as long as 2700 years.

In 1370, the third year of
Hongwu of Ming Dynasty, the town
was expanded with the city wall
lengthened from 9 Li plus 18 steps
to 12 Li plus 8.4 Fen.(Li Fen,and
step are ancient Chinese measure—
ment units.) In later Ming and Qing
Dynasties, out of the needs of military
defence, Pingyao Town was repaired
and strengthened for 25 times, re—
sulting in the present size and state,

The existent buildings were all
built in Ming and Qing Dynasties,
There are intact ancient city walls,
well—planned roads -and streets,
uniquely designed wood-—structured
houses and courtyards, historically
famous Shanxi commercial banks and




shops. Together with several exis—
tent ancient Buddhist and Taoist
temples, Pingyao City presents a
complete beautiful picture of an—
cient life style in North China.
Because of natural disasters,
war—tearing and time—wearing, most
of ancient city towns in China have
been destroyed. So well—preserved
is the Pingyao ancient city that we
can say it is a miracle and it is of
great historical significance. In Dec.
1997, Pingyao Ancient City was
listed as one of the world cultural
heritages by UNESCO.This has
aroused people's great interest the

world over, Thousands upon thou-—

sands visitors from both at home
and abroad have come to visit it
and appreciate its ancient beauty.
As part of human being's common
cultural wealth, this ancient city
will help people witness the human
history and provide people with more
historical nourishment.

| Ancient City Walls and Gates

Built with rammed earth inside
and brick and stone outside, the
ancient city walls measure 10 meters
high and 6162.7 meters long with



3—5 meters wide tops. Except the
southern wall which zigzags a bit
according to the land contour, the
other three walls all go straight,
making the city area a square one.
One city gate was built each to the
southern and northern walls and two
city gates were built each to the
western and eastern walls. All six
city gates have gate towers and
inside gates attached to them. A
watch tower was built on the wall
top every 50—100 meters away, to—
talling 72 watch towers in all along
the four walls., The parapets mea—
suring 2 meters high each were
built along the outside edges of the
walls  with 3000 mouths left open
for defence shooting. It is said that
Confucius once had 72 disciples
and 3000 students,
watch towers and 3000 parapets'
openings on the top of the four

therefore 72

walls were built, There were an—
other four grand watch towers origi—
nally built on the four corners of
the squared walls, but they all dis—
appeared long ago, with only one
Great Scholar Tower and one Name—
roll Calling Platforrn on the wall
tops left today. Dug around the walls
is a defence ditch measuring more
than 3.3 meters in depth and 3.3
meters in width with trees planted
along it, A drawbridge is built in
front of each gate,

Pingyao City is called "Tor—
toise City" by local people, be—

cause the southern gate and the
northern gate look like the head and
tail of a tortoise,while the two gates
in the eastern wall and two gates
in the western wall look much like
the four legs of a tortoise. With
the outside gate extended a bit out
of the inside southern gate and two
wells dug outside on eitherside, the

tortoise city seems, to have its

own head and its two eyes. What's




more, the northern gate curves a bit
towards the east, the four gates in
both the western and eastern walls
curve a bit all towards the south.
This design shows as if a tortoise
is crawling forward. Some people
say it was for preventing the flood
coming from the north—west that
the city walls were built in such a
pattern. But there is no definite proof
for this saying except the symbolic
meaning of eternity given by the
shape of a tortoise according to the
Chinese mentality.

Il Streets and Markets

The three—storey Market Tower
is the center and joint point of the
city streets. The buildings such as
Ancient City Government seat Town
God's Temple, Confucius Temple,
Military God Temple, Wealth God
Temple and Lucky Fortune Temple
are arranged symmetrically With its
main streets forming a " shape,
there are altogether four main streets,
eight branch streets and 72 lanes in
the city area. Having stood a long
time weather—wearing , all these
buildings show no sign of
dilapidation. In front of the gates of
some magnificent buildings and grand
shops, deep ruts on the ground are
still there to be seen,reminding visi—
tors of its ancient busy traffic and
commercial situation,

The streets in this ancient town

are not broad, but very well arranged.
Dotted with memorial archways and
decorated gateways, stretching one
after another and high and low,the
old houses and courtyards flanking
the streets and lanes remind visi—
tors of the long past and their an—
cestral places. Walking along the
ancient streets, you seem to have
landed in a world beyond the present
one.

18.5 meters in height, and situ—
ated in the town centre, the Market
Tower is the highest building, with
the main street from the south to
the north running through it. It is
said the marketing was going on
around the Tower all day long, thus
it was named the Market Tower.
Belonging now to the historial sites
protected by
government, it was renovated in 1688
during the Emperor Kangxi Period of
Qing Dynasty,though people still
don't know when it was first built.

the provincial

11l Banks and Shops

Pingyao is one of the birth
places of Shanxi's banking and com—
mercial businesses. As early as in
1824, Bank of Ri Sheng Chang (Sun—
rise Prosperity) initiated by Mr. Lei
Lutai had begun its banking business.
Probably it was the earliest bank in
China and the beginning of Chinese
finance business in the modern era.
Within a few years of its founding,



its branch banks were rapidly dis—
tributed to Jiangsu, Shandong, Henan
and Liaoning Provinces, Branch banks
were also set up in such big cities
as Beijing, Chongging. Tianjin_
Guangzhou_  Hankou_ Xi'an,
Nanchang, Changsha_ Sanyuan and
so on, Followed by many Shanxi
merchants and bankers, the banking
business of Shanxi developed quickly,
reaching such countries as Korea_
Japan _Singapore Russia and so on,
Besides Ri Sheng Chang,collected
in Pingyao City were more than 20
headquarters of such big nation—
wide banks as Ri Sheng Tong,_ Ri
Sheng Da_ Bai Chuan Tong., Wan
Xie Tong Qin_ Xie
Tong Tai and so on.There were also

Yuan Sheng,

many banks in neighbouring coun—
ties like Tai Gu and Qi Xian. Shanxi's
banks constituted more than half of
the banks in China, dominating then
nation's finance business. Besides
the banking business in commerce,
Qing government's bank business
affairs in the fields of industry,
railways_ water projects_ coastal
defence_ relief funds and interna—
tional finance affairs were all handled
and managed by Shanxi's Bank
System. They almost played the
roles of the National Central Bank
and the National Finance Ministry
of this country at that time,

Up till today, people can still
trace its great prosperity of the bank

groups nicknamed as “Asian Wall

Street” from the remaining bank and
shop buildings along the West Main
Street in ancient Pingyao City.

IV Houses and Courtyards

There are altogether 3797 tra—
ditional residential “Siheyuan”, court—
yards enclosed by buildings on all
four sides, among which 400 court—
yards are still well—preserved. Most
of these courtyards have been left
over since Ming and Qing Dynasties;
some are the Yuan Dynasty build—
ings enjoying a history of more
than 600 vyears, which are rarely
seen in other parts of China.

Residential constructions in
Pingyao vary greatly in style. Some
are single—doored courtyards with
buildings on all four sides, Some
are compounds with two or three
courtyards in a string, or with a
grand passway between two

courtyards, Some courtyards have



another courtyard coupled, with the
main or two main courtyards par—
alleling with each other. Most of
the houses are wood—framed, hav—
ing the walls built with bricks and
the roofs covered with grey tiles,
Some houses have brick—arched
ceilings, or have another room built
over this cave—like house. Usually,
the wooden doors, windows, cor—
nices and their supporters have in—
tricate designs and decorations, Stone
columns and their bases are also
sculptured beautifully. Brick walls
opposite to the courtyard front doors
always have meaningful sculptures
on them, Pediments on the house
roofs are built up and covered by
tiles with both ends decorated by
tiger—faced tiles, The pediments on
rich families' house roofs are usu-—
ally fixed with elegant animal—
shaped tiles specially made of baked
clay. The residential houses in
Pingyao bear all the typical char—
acteristics of the houses in the central
part of Shanxi Province.

V  Seat of Ancient Government

Since the First Emperor Period
of Qin Dynasty (221 B.C.), Pingyao
has been the seat of the county
government. In the long period of
Chinese feudal society, the seat of
a county government ont only served
not only as a place where civil
administration was done but as a

place where law suits were handled
and criminals imprisoned. Therefore,
the seat of county government was
a very important place in the old
days.

The seat of old Pingyao
government, located in the down—
town area of the ancient city, was
originally built in 1346 in Yuan
Dynasty. Except Da Xian Lou, the
grand mansion, which was built in
Yuan Dynasty, all other houses and
buildings were rebuilt in the Wan
Li Period of Ming Dynasty. Facing
the south, the cluster of buildings
in this ancient county government
seat were built along a central line
about 200 meters long. The build—
ings in this compound are arranged
according to the feudal rules and
regulations with the proper order of
the superior and inferior and with
the temples and offices to the left
and safe—guarding and military ser—
vices to the right, There are alto—
gether 299 rooms in the cormpound.
Along the central line are such build—
ings as the grand gate, the cer—
emony gate, the archway, the main
hall, the official residence's gate,
the guest—receiving hall, the resi—
dential rooms and the grand masion.
To the east of the centralline, build—
ings are the Land God Temple, Zan
Hou Temple, Grain Hall and Flower
Garden. To the west are the prison,
the court, the garrison and the
Hongshan post. The layout and the



scale of these buildings follow
strictly the patterns laid down by
the feudal rules and regulations with
the dignity of the Emperor's laws
revealed. On the columns of each
hall hung the wooden couplets bear—
ing the words suitable to its function.
People can get a better understand—
ing of the feudal society after reading
these interesting words on the
couplets.

VI Buddhist and Taoist Temples

The Buddhist and Taoist temples
in Pingyao are as old as the ancient
city, bearing a high value of culture.

Shuang Lin Temple is located
in Qiao Tou Village, 6 kilometers
away to the south —west of Pingyao,
It is part of UNESCO—approved World
Culture Heritage in Pingyao. Originaly
named Zhong Du Temple, no one
knows when it was first built. Ac—
cording to the record of the stone
tablet erected in the year 1011 during
Northern Song Dynasty, the temple
was renovated in the year 571 during
Northern Qi Dynasty. In Song
Dynasty, the temple was renamed
as Shuang Lin Temple, taking after
the saying from the Buddhist script
that the Buddha passed away in
Shuang Lin. The buildings in the
temple underwent reconstruction and
renovation in a great scale in Ming
and Qing Dynasties. The most ex—
istent buildings belong to the Ming

Dynasty architecture,

There are more than 2000 painted
statues in ten halls distributed in
three connected courtyards. The
Sakyamuni and Bodhisattva statues
look quite self—possessed. The stat—
ues of Buddha's guardian warriors
and attendants seem majestic and
awe—inspiring. While statues of
Skandas and arhats are bearing vari—
ous expressions, the statues of wor—
shippers and contributors appear timid
and filial, These painted statues have
great artistic values and exercise
great artistic appeals. That's why
this temple is named the “Treasure
House of Painted Sculptures in the
East”,

Shuang Lin Temple is now a
site under the state—level protection,

Zhen Guo Temple is located in
Hao Dong Village, 12 kilometers
away to the north—east of Pingyao
City. It is also part of the UNESCO—
approved World Culture Heritage in
Pingyao. Originally built in 963 and
named Jingcheng Temple, it was
renamed as Zhen Guo Temple in
1540 during the Ming Dynasty. lts
main hall called “"Wanfu (10 thou—
sand Buddhas) Hall” enjoys the Tang
Dynasty architecture style, leaving
visitors a deep impression by its
magnificent building and painted
statues. It is also under the state—
level protection.

Qing Xu Temple is a Taoist
temple under the province—level




protection, located on the

north side of the East Street in
Pingyao City. Originally built in 652
during the Tang Dynasty, this well—
laid out Taoist temple enjoys a spe—
cial feature of its own. Covering
6000 m? , the famous buildings like
Dragon — tiger Hall and Chun Yang
(Pure Sun) Palace dominate the
temple. Dragon — tiger Hall is a Yuan
Dynasty building built in a peculiar
and rarely—seen technique called
"Hanging beams and dangling pillars”,
There are more than 20 painted
wooden sculptures of Taoist saints,
which provide people with valuable
samples in doing research of Tao-—
ism and Taoist arts.

Qing Xu Temple is now opened
up as Pingyao Museum, storing thou—
sands of valuable relics.

City God Temple of Pingyao

is one of the well—preserved city
god temples in China. This Taoist
temple was first built in early Ming

Dynasty, repaired in 1554 during
the Ming Jiang Jing Period, reno—
vated and supplemented in later Qing
Dynasty. In 1858, the temple was
burned down during a temple fair,
It was rebuilt in 1864, the third
year of Tong Zhi Period of Qing
Dynasty.

City God, a god for keeping
city safe in Taoism, seems to be a
“local official”, Therefore, the temple
built for him looks like a govern—
ment seat, with the same feature of
having a performance stage in front
of the main hall and residence be—
hind it as other Taoist temples do.
City God Temple in Pingyao is
flanked with a temple named Kitchen
God Temple to the east and Wealth
God Temple to the west., Commu—
nicating each other and administer—
ing each own affairs, the three gods
live in one's own temple close to
each other. One can't help exclaiming
in admiration that the idea is quite
prodigious.

Ancient Pingyao City condenses
two thousand years' local history
and culture, It is very hard for us
to introduce one by one as many as
99 key historical sites under the
protection of governments at all
levels. We firmly believe that these
valuable cultural and historical rel—
ics and remains in Pingyao will
shed even greater brilliance with
the time passing by.
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